
NORTH RIDGEVILLE CITY COUNCIL 

UTILITIES COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS – 6:30 p.m. 

MONDAY, NOVEMBER 5, 2018 
 

To Order: 
Chairman Dennis Boose called the Utilities Committee meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 

 

Attendance:  
Members present: Chairman Dennis Boose, Councilman Gregg Westover and 

Councilman Martin DeVries. 

 

Also present: Mayor David Gillock, City Council President Kevin Corcoran, Councilman 

Bruce Abens, President of Bramhall Engineering - Mike Bramhall, Councilwoman 

Michelle Hung, Assistant Clerk of Council Tara L. Peet, Auditor Jeff Wilcheck, Engineer 

Dan Rodriguez, Safety-Service Director Jeff Armbruster, Councilman Bob Chapek, Law 

Director Brian Moriarty and Clerk of Council Nancy Linden. 

 

Minutes: 

Chairman Boose asked for any corrections to the minutes of September 17, 2018.  No 

discussion was offered.  The minutes stand approved as submitted.   

 

Discussion regarding T 90-2018: 

Chairman Boose went through each change indicated in red in the attached Ordinance.  

He asked if the Committee had any comments or questions on the changes. 

 

Councilman Chapek asked if there would be a limit as to how much the increase could go 

up annually.   

 

Chairman Boose stated it is based on a formula from the Engineering News Record 20 

Cities Average Construction Cost Index. 

 

Engineer Rodriguez stated that index typically fluctuates 1.7% to 3.6%.  He noted last 

year it was at 3.3%.   

 

Moved by DeVries and seconded by Westover that City Council adopt T 90-2018 

as amended. 

 

A voice vote was taken and the motion carried. 

Yes – 3  No – 0  

 

Discussion regarding T 107-2018: 

Chairman Boose noted the change in the title and throughout the document that “new” 

should read “news” and “costs” should read “cost”.   

 

Safety-Service Director Armbruster stated the rate for 2018 would be $3.76 and the rate 

for 2019 would be $3.88.   



Utilities Committee 11.05.2018  2 

 

Chairman Boose stated the credit manual was referenced in T 90-2018 and he had a few 

questions in regard to the introduction in the manual.  He noted the first sentence in the 

introduction paragraph was not mentioned in T 90 regarding water quality and wondered 

if it should be. 

 

Safety-Service Director Armbruster stated there should be consideration for water 

quality. 

 

Engineer Rodriguez stated T 90-2018 does discuss the impact of stormwater runoff and 

he felt that covered water quality.   

 

Louis McMahon, Esq. stated section .01 of T 90-2018 references the Clean Water Act 

which covers water quality. 

 

Chairman Boose moved on to section 3 and asked if thirty percent was the average given 

usually for non-residential gravel credits. 

 

Mayor Gillock stated the City’s Ordinances discuss bituminous surfaces, but nothing 

technically permits a gravel driveway.  He noted he did not feel a credit should be given 

for a gravel driveway as the City doesn’t technically allow it.  Mayor Gillock stated when 

the calculations were done on impervious surfaces, gravel was calculated in and he didn’t 

agree with it.    

 

Chairman Boose stated unless the parcel owner had a variance for the gravel drive. 

 

Mayor Gillock stated he believed the manual needed to be discussed more. 

 

Safety-Service Director Armbruster stated they will need to discuss if gravel is 

considered dust free.  

 

Mayor Gillock stated gravel is not dust free. 

 

Chairman Boose asked what the Administration wanted to do with the credit manual.  He 

added he could not understand why the manual was not ready for the Committee to 

discuss and why everyone was not on the same page.  

 

Mayor Gillock stated he didn’t think the credit manual was part of the discussion. 

 

Chairman Boose stated it was referenced in T 90-2018 and it is part of the discussion. 

 

Mayor Gillock stated he felt the manual was about ninety-five percent ready.  

 

Chairman Boose stated he felt there were too many inconsistencies.  He apologized to 

everyone in the audience and explained what was presented to the Committee is still not 

ready for a decision. 



Utilities Committee 11.05.2018  3 

 

Moved by Boose and seconded by DeVries to rescind the recommendation to 

council on T 90-2018. 

 

A voice vote was taken and the motion carried. 

 Yes – 3  No – 0  

 

Engineer Rodriguez asked what specific changes he had to the credit manual. 

 

Chairman Boose noted the inconsistencies in the manual as to the definition of Director 

in T 90-2018 and the reference to the Safety-Service Director or his designee.  He noted 

it should be uniform throughout all documents to be the Mayor or his/her designee.   

 

Adjournment: 
Chairman Boose adjourned the meeting at 6:52 p.m. 

 

 

Date Approved: _____________________________ 

 

 

___________________________________________ 

Tara L. Peet, MMC 

Assistant Clerk of Council 

 

  



Utilities Committee 11.05.2018  4 

 

 
  



Utilities Committee 11.05.2018  5 

 

 
  



Utilities Committee 11.05.2018  6 

 

 
  



Utilities Committee 11.05.2018  7 

 

 
  



Utilities Committee 11.05.2018  8 

 

 
  



Utilities Committee 11.05.2018  9 

 

 
  



Utilities Committee 11.05.2018  10 

 

 
  



Utilities Committee 11.05.2018  11 

 

 


